

Invasion of Privacy Act 1971

Current as at 14 October 2010

Information about this reprint

This Act is reprinted as at 14 October 2010. The reprint shows the law as amended by all amendments that commenced on or before that day (Reprints Act 1992 s 5(c)).

The reprint includes a reference to the law by which each amendment was made—see list of legislation and list of annotations in endnotes. Also see list of legislation for any uncommenced amendments.

This page is specific to this reprint. See previous reprints for information about earlier changes made under the Reprints Act 1992. A table of reprints is included in the endnotes.

Also see endnotes for information about—

- when provisions commenced
- editorial changes made in earlier reprints.

Spelling

The spelling of certain words or phrases may be inconsistent in this reprint or with other reprints because of changes made in various editions of the Macquarie Dictionary (for example, in the dictionary, 'lodgement' has replaced 'lodgment'). Variations of spelling will be updated in the next authorised reprint.

Dates shown on reprints

Reprints dated at last amendment All reprints produced on or after 1 July 2002, authorised (that is, hard copy) and unauthorised (that is, electronic), are dated as at the last date of amendment. Previously reprints were dated as at the date of publication. If an authorised reprint is dated earlier than an unauthorised version published before 1 July 2002, it means the legislation was not further amended and the reprint date is the commencement of the last amendment.

If the date of an authorised reprint is the same as the date shown for an unauthorised version previously published, it merely means that the unauthorised version was published before the authorised version. Also, any revised edition of the previously published unauthorised version will have the same date as that version.

Replacement reprint date If the date of an authorised reprint is the same as the date shown on another authorised reprint it means that one is the replacement of the other.



Queensland

Invasion of Privacy Act 1971

Contents

		Page
Part 1	Preliminary	
1	Short title	3
2	Commencement	3
4	Definitions	3
Part 2	Inspectors	
5	Appointment of inspectors	4
6	Inspector's identity card	5
6A	Production of inspector's identity card	5
7	Powers of inspector	5
Part 4	Listening devices	
41	Part binds Crown	6
42	Reference to listening devices and private conversations	6
43	Prohibition on use of listening devices	6
44	Prohibition on communication or publication of private conversations unlawfully listened to	8
45	Prohibition on communication or publication of private conversations by parties thereto.	9
46	Inadmissibility of evidence of private conversations when unlawfully obtained	10
48	Advertising listening devices prohibited	11
Part 4A	Invasion of privacy with respect to dwelling houses	
48A	Unlawful entry of dwelling houses	11
Part 5	Miscellaneous	
48B	Delegation by chief executive	13
49	Offences and penalty	13
50	Proceedings how and when taken	14
51	Saving of remedies	14
51A	Protection from liability	14

Invasion of Privacy Act 1971

Contents

51B	Approval of forms	15
52	Regulation-making power	15
Fundantan		
Endnotes		
1	Index to endnotes	16
2	Date to which amendments incorporated	16
3	Key	17
4	Table of reprints	17
5	Tables in earlier reprints	18
6	List of legislation	18
7	List of annotations	19

Invasion of Privacy Act 1971

[as amended by all amendments that commenced on or before 14 October 2010]

An Act to make provision for the licensing and control of credit reporting agents, for regulating the use of listening devices and for other purposes

Part 1 Preliminary

1 Short title

This Act may be cited as the *Invasion of Privacy Act 1971*.

2 Commencement

- (1) Except as provided in subsection (2), this Act, or this Act less specified provisions, shall commence on a date to be fixed by the Governor by proclamation.
- (2) The Governor may, by proclamation under subsection (1) or by a subsequent proclamation or proclamations fix a date or dates for the commencement of the several provisions of this Act not brought into operation pursuant to subsection (1) later than the date fixed by the proclamation under subsection (1).
- (3) Every proclamation under this section shall be published in the gazette.

4 Definitions

In this Act—

approved form see section 51B.

Commissioner means the commissioner of the police service.

inspector means a person who is appointed under section 5 as an inspector.

listening device means any instrument, apparatus, equipment or device capable of being used to overhear, record, monitor or listen to a private conversation simultaneously with its taking place.

private conversation means any words spoken by one person to another person in circumstances that indicate that those persons desire the words to be heard or listened to only by themselves or that indicate that either of those persons desires the words to be heard or listened to only by themselves and by some other person, but does not include words spoken by one person to another person in circumstances in which either of those persons ought reasonably to expect the words may be overheard, recorded, monitored or listened to by some other person, not being a person who has the consent, express or implied, of either of those persons to do so.

Part 2 Inspectors

5 Appointment of inspectors

- (1) The chief executive may appoint an officer of the public service to be an inspector.
- (2) The chief executive may appoint a person to be an inspector only if—
 - (a) the chief executive believes that the person has the necessary expertise or experience to be an inspector; or
 - (b) the person has satisfactorily completed a course of training approved by the chief executive.
- (3) The chief executive may limit the powers of an inspector by stating conditions in the instrument of appointment.

6 Inspector's identity card

- (1) The chief executive must issue an identity card to each inspector.
- (2) The identity card must—
 - (a) contain a recent photograph of the inspector; and
 - (b) be signed by the inspector.
- (3) A person who stops being an inspector must return the identity card to the chief executive as soon as practicable after stopping to be an inspector, unless the person has a reasonable excuse for not returning it.

Maximum penalty for subsection (3)—20 penalty units.

6A Production of inspector's identity card

- (1) An inspector may exercise a power under this Act in relation to a person only if the inspector first produces or displays the inspector's identity card for inspection by the person.
- (2) If, for any reason, it is not practicable to comply with subsection (1), the inspector must produce the identity card for inspection by the person at the first reasonable opportunity.

7 Powers of inspector

- (1) For the purposes of this Act an inspector may at any time do any or all of the following—
 - (a) make such examination and inquiry as may be necessary to ascertain whether the provisions of this Act have been or are being complied with and interrogate any person for that purpose and require any such person to answer the questions put, and to sign a declaration of the truth of the person's answers;
 - (b) enter any premises at the registered address of any licensee and inspect and examine any books and papers found upon such entry;

- (c) call to his or her aid any person whom the inspector may think competent to assist him or her in the exercise of any power aforesaid;
- (d) exercise such other powers as may be prescribed.
- (2) Nothing contained in subsection (1) renders any person compellable to answer any question incriminating or tending to incriminate himself or herself.

Part 4 Listening devices

41 Part binds Crown

Except where otherwise provided, this part binds the Crown.

42 Reference to listening devices and private conversations

- (1) A reference in this part to a listening device does not include a reference to a hearing aid or similar device used by a person with impaired hearing to overcome the impairment and to permit the person only to hear sounds ordinarily audible to the human ear.
- (2) A reference in this part to a party to a private conversation is a reference—
 - (a) to a person by or to whom words are spoken in the course of a private conversation; and
 - (b) to a person who, with the consent, express or implied, of any of the persons by or to whom words are spoken in the course of a private conversation, overhears, records, monitors or listens to those words.

43 Prohibition on use of listening devices

(1) A person is guilty of an offence against this Act if the person uses a listening device to overhear, record, monitor or listen to

- a private conversation and is liable on conviction on indictment to a maximum penalty of 40 penalty units or imprisonment for 2 years.
- (2) Subsection (1) does not apply—
 - (a) where the person using the listening device is a party to the private conversation; or
 - (b) to the unintentional hearing of a private conversation by means of a telephone; or
 - (c) to or in relation to the use of any listening device by—
 - (i) an officer employed in the service of the Commonwealth in relation to customs authorised by a warrant under the hand of the Comptroller-General of Customs under the *Customs Act 1901* (Cwlth) to use a listening device in the performance of the officer's duty; or
 - (ii) a person employed in connection with the security of the Commonwealth when acting in the performance of the person's duty under an Act passed by the Parliament of the Commonwealth relating to the security of the Commonwealth; or
 - (d) to or in relation to the use of a listening device by a police officer or another person under a provision of an Act authorising the use of a listening device.
- (3) A person referred to in subsection (2)(c) who uses a listening device to overhear, record, monitor or listen to any private conversation to which the person is not a party shall not communicate or publish the substance or meaning of that private conversation otherwise than in the performance of the person's duty.
- (4) The court by which a person is convicted of an offence under this section may, by its conviction, order that any listening device used in the commission of the offence and described in the order shall be forfeited to Her Majesty and delivered up, within such period as may be specified in the order, by the person who has possession of the listening device to a person specified in the order.

- (5) If an order is made under subsection (4), the person who has possession of the listening device must deliver up the listening device under the order.
 - Maximum penalty—20 penalty units.
- (6) If a person contravenes subsection (5), whether or not a proceeding for the offence has started, a police officer may seize the listening device and deliver it up under the order.

44 Prohibition on communication or publication of private conversations unlawfully listened to

- (1) A person is guilty of an offence against this Act if the person communicates or publishes to any other person a private conversation, or a report of, or of the substance, meaning or purport of, a private conversation, that has come to his or her knowledge as a result, direct or indirect, of the use of a listening device used in contravention of section 43 and is liable on conviction on indictment to a maximum penalty of 40 penalty units or imprisonment for 2 years.
- (2) Subsection (1) does not apply—
 - (a) where the communication or publication of the private conversation is made—
 - (i) to a party to the conversation or with the consent, express or implied, of such a party; or
 - (ii) in the course of proceedings for an offence against this Act constituted by a contravention of, or a failure to comply with any provision of this part; or
 - (b) to prevent a person who has obtained knowledge of a private conversation otherwise than in a manner referred to in that subsection from communicating or publishing to another person the knowledge so obtained by the person, notwithstanding that the person also obtained knowledge of the conversation in such a manner.

45 Prohibition on communication or publication of private conversations by parties thereto

- (1) A person who, having been a party to a private conversation and having used a listening device to overhear, record, monitor or listen to that conversation, subsequently communicates or publishes to any other person any record of the conversation made, directly or indirectly, by the use of the listening device or any statement prepared from such a record is guilty of an offence against this Act and is liable on conviction on indictment to a maximum penalty of 40 penalty units or imprisonment for 2 years.
- (2) Subsection (1) does not apply where the communication or publication—
 - (a) is made to another party to the private conversation or with the consent, express or implied, of all other parties to the private conversation, being parties referred to in section 42(2)(a); or
 - (b) is made in the course of legal proceedings; or
 - (c) is not more than is reasonably necessary—
 - (i) in the public interest; or
 - (ii) in the performance of a duty of the person making the communication or publication; or
 - (iii) for the protection of the lawful interests of that person; or
 - (d) is made to a person who has, or is believed, on reasonable grounds, by the person making the communication or publication to have, such an interest in the private conversation as to make the communication or publication reasonable under the circumstances in which it is made; or
 - (e) is made by a person who used the listening device to overhear, record, monitor, or listen to the private conversation under section 43(2)(c) or (d).
- (3) In subsection (2)—

legal proceedings includes—

- (a) proceedings (whether civil or criminal) in or before any court; and
- (b) proceedings before justices; and
- (c) proceedings before any court, tribunal or person (including any inquiry, examination or arbitration) in which evidence is or may be given; and
- (d) any part of legal proceedings.

Inadmissibility of evidence of private conversations when unlawfully obtained

- (1) Where a private conversation has come to the knowledge of a person as a result, direct or indirect, of the use of a listening device used in contravention of section 43, evidence of that conversation may not be given by that person in any civil or criminal proceedings.
- (2) Subsection (1) does not render inadmissible—
 - (a) evidence of a private conversation that has, in the manner referred to in that subsection, come to the knowledge of the person called to give the evidence, if a party to the conversation consents to that person giving the evidence; or
 - (b) evidence of a private conversation that has, otherwise than in the manner referred to in that subsection, come to the knowledge of the person called to give the evidence, notwithstanding that the person also obtained knowledge of the conversation in such a manner; or
 - (c) in any proceedings for an offence against this Act constituted by a contravention of, or a failure to comply with, any provision of this part, evidence of a private conversation that has in the manner referred to in that subsection come to the knowledge of the person called to give the evidence.
- (3) The court before which any proceedings referred to in subsection (2)(c) are brought may, at any stage of the

proceedings and from time to time, make an order forbidding publication of any evidence, or of any report of, or report of the substance, meaning or purport of, any evidence referred to in that subsection.

(4) Any person who contravenes an order made under subsection (3) is guilty of an offence against this Act.

Maximum penalty—10 penalty units.

48 Advertising listening devices prohibited

A person who—

- (a) publishes or causes to be published by radio or television or in any newspaper or other publication an advertisement relating to any listening device of a prescribed class or description; or
- (b) in any other way advertises or publicly exhibits any such listening device with the intention or apparent intention of promoting its sale or use;

is guilty of an offence.

Maximum penalty—20 penalty units or imprisonment for 1 year.

Part 4A Invasion of privacy with respect to dwelling houses

48A Unlawful entry of dwelling houses

(1) Any person who enters a dwelling house without the consent of the person in lawful occupation or, where there is not a person in lawful occupation, without the consent of the owner is guilty of an offence.

Maximum penalty—20 penalty units or imprisonment for 1 year.

- (1A) If the offender gains entry to the dwelling house—
 - (a) by force; or
 - (b) by threats or intimidation of any kind; or
 - (c) by deceit; or
 - (d) by any fraudulent trick or device; or
 - (e) by false and fraudulent representations as to the reason for entry;

the offender is guilty of an offence whether or not the offender has the consent of the person in lawful occupation or the owner.

Maximum penalty—30 penalty units or imprisonment for 18 months.

- (2) A person is not guilty of an offence under subsection (1) or (1A)—
 - (a) where the person shows that his or her entry of the dwelling house in question (not being an entry by any means referred to in subsection (1A)(b), (c), (d) or (e)) was authorised, justified or excused by law; or
 - (b) where the person shows that he or she entered the dwelling house in question bona fide for the protection or succour of any person therein or the preservation or protection of the dwelling house.
- (3) Any person who without lawful excuse, the proof of which lawful excuse shall be upon the person, is found in a dwelling house or the yard of a dwelling house is guilty of an offence.

Maximum penalty—20 penalty units or imprisonment for 1 year.

(3A) In subsection (3)—

yard includes any path, garden, curtilage, courtyard, enclosure, lawn or other ground or area within the precincts of or appurtenant to or under the dwelling house in question.

- (4) It is lawful for any person who finds another committing an offence against this section to arrest him or her without warrant.
- (5) In any case where there is power pursuant to subsection (4) to arrest an offender, the power and authority to proceed against such an offender by way of complaint and summons under the *Justices Act 1886* in accordance with this Act also lies.
- (11) The provisions of this section are in addition to, are not in substitution for, and do not derogate from any of the provisions of the Criminal Code or any other Act.
- (12) In this section—

dwelling house has the meaning it has from time to time in the Criminal Code.

(13) For the purposes of this section, a person is said to enter a dwelling house as soon as any part of the person's body or any part of any instrument used by the person is within the dwelling house.

Part 5 Miscellaneous

48B Delegation by chief executive

The chief executive may delegate the chief executive's powers under this Act to an officer of the department.

49 Offences and penalty

- (1) A person who contravenes or fails to comply with any provision of this Act is guilty of an offence against this Act and, where no penalty is expressly provided, is liable to a penalty not exceeding 10 penalty units.
- (2) Where a person, being a corporation, is guilty of an offence against this Act, any director, manager, secretary or other officer of the corporation who knowingly authorises or

permits the same or is a party to the offence is guilty of that offence and is liable on conviction to the pecuniary penalty or imprisonment provided by this Act for such offence.

- (3) Any offence against this Act which is expressed to be punishable upon conviction on indictment is a misdemeanour.
- (4) Except where this Act otherwise provides, offences against this Act shall be punishable on summary conviction.

50 Proceedings how and when taken

Proceedings for an offence against this Act that is punishable on summary conviction may be brought within the period of 12 months of the commission of the alleged offence, or within 6 months after the commission of the alleged offence comes to the knowledge of the complainant whichever is the later.

51 Saving of remedies

No proceedings or conviction for any offence against this Act shall affect any civil right or remedy to which any person aggrieved by the offence may be entitled.

51A Protection from liability

(1) In this section—

official means—

- (a) the Minister; or
- (b) the Commissioner; or
- (c) the chief executive; or
- (d) an inspector; or
- (e) a police officer; or
- (f) a person acting under the direction of an inspector or a police officer.
- (2) An official does not incur civil liability for an act or omission done honestly and without negligence under this Act.

(3) A liability that would, apart from this section, attach to an official attaches instead to the State.

51B Approval of forms

The chief executive may approve forms for use under this Act.

52 Regulation-making power

- (1) The Governor in Council may make regulations under this Act.
- (2) A regulation may provide for a maximum penalty of 20 penalty units for a contravention of the regulation.

Endnotes

1 Index to endnotes

		Page
2	Date to which amendments incorporated	16
3	Key	17
4	Table of reprints	17
5	Tables in earlier reprints	18
6	List of legislation	18
7	List of annotations	19

2 Date to which amendments incorporated

This is the reprint date mentioned in the Reprints Act 1992, section 5(c). Accordingly, this reprint includes all amendments that commenced operation on or before 14 October 2010. Future amendments of the Invasion of Privacy Act 1971 may be made in accordance with this reprint under the Reprints Act 1992, section 49.

3 Key

Key to abbreviations in list of legislation and annotations

Key		Explanation	Key		Explanation
AIA	=	Acts Interpretation Act 1954	(prev)	=	previously
amd	=	amended	proc	=	proclamation
amdt	=	amendment	prov	=	provision
ch	=	chapter	pt	=	part
def	=	definition	pubd	=	published
div	=	division	R[X]	=	Reprint No. [X]
exp	=	expires/expired	RA	=	Reprints Act 1992
gaz	=	gazette	reloc	=	relocated
hdg	=	heading	renum	=	renumbered
ins	=	inserted	rep	=	repealed
lap	=	lapsed	(retro)	=	retrospectively
notfd	=	notified	rv	=	revised edition
num	=	numbered	S	=	section
o in c	=	order in council	sch	=	schedule
om	=	omitted	sdiv	=	subdivision
orig	=	original	SIA	=	Statutory Instruments Act 1992
р	=	page	SIR	=	Statutory Instruments Regulation 2002
para	=	paragraph	\mathbf{SL}	=	subordinate legislation
prec	=	preceding	sub	=	substituted
pres	=	present	unnum	=	unnumbered
prev	=	previous			

4 Table of reprints

Reprints are issued for both future and past effective dates. For the most up-to-date table of reprints, see the reprint with the latest effective date.

If a reprint number includes a letter of the alphabet, the reprint was released in unauthorised, electronic form only.

Reprint No.	Amendments to	Effective	Reprint date
1	1993 Act No. 83	17 February 1995	24 April 1995
1A	1995 Act No. 58	28 November 1995	8 August 1996
2	1995 Act No. 58	28 November 1995	17 February 1998
2A	1999 Act No. 63	28 November 1995	4 February 2000
2B	1999 Act No. 63	10 March 2000	10 March 2000
2C	2000 Act No. 5	1 July 2000	25 August 2000
2D	2002 Act No. 13	7 June 2002	14 June 2002
Reprint No.	Amendments included	Effective	Notes
3 3A		7 June 2002 14 October 2010	

5 Tables in earlier reprints

Name of table	Reprint No.
Obsolete and redundant provisions	1
Renumbered provisions	1

6 List of legislation

Invasion of Privacy Act 1971 No. 50

date of assent 15 November 1971 ss 1–2 commenced on date of assent remaining provisions commenced 1 July 1972 (proc pubd gaz 1 July 1972 p 1133) amending legislation—

Invasion of Privacy Act Amendment Act 1976 No. 26

date of assent 22 April 1976 commenced 1 June 1976 (proc pubd gaz 22 May 1976 p 650)

Administration of Commercial Laws Act and Other Acts Amendment Act 1981 No. 57 pts 1, 4

date of assent 12 June 1981 ss 1–2 commenced on date of assent remaining provisions commenced 1 July 1982 (proc pubd gaz 29 June 1982 p 2101)

Companies (Consequential Amendments) Act 1981 No. 111 s 23 pts 1, 6

date of assent 16 December 1981 ss 1–2 commenced on date of assent remaining provisions commenced 1 July 1982 (see s 2(4) and proc pubd gaz 29 June 1982 p 2102)

Commissions of Inquiry Act and Other Acts Amendment Act 1988 No. 58 pts 1, 4 date of assent 25 August 1988 commenced on date of assent

Public Service (Administrative Arrangements) Act (No. 2) 1990 No. 80 s 3 sch 6 date of assent 14 November 1990 commenced on date of assent

Justice Legislation (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1992 No. 40 pt 1, s 163 sch 1 date of assent 14 August 1992 commenced on date of assent

Consumer Law (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1993 No. 82 ss 1–3 sch 1

date of assent 17 December 1993 commenced on date of assent

Security Providers Act 1993 No. 83 pts 1, 6

date of assent 17 December 1993

```
ss 1–2 commenced on date of assent remaining provisions commenced 17 February 1995 (1995 SL No. 24)
```

Statute Law Revision Act (No. 2) 1995 No. 58 ss 1-2, 4 sch 1

date of assent 28 November 1995 commenced on date of assent

Equity and Fair Trading (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1999 No. 63 pts 1, 8

date of assent 6 December 1999 ss 1–2 commenced on date of assent remaining provisions commenced 10 March 2000 (2000 SL No. 36)

Police Powers and Responsibilities Act 2000 No. 5 ss 1-2, 461 (prev s 373) sch 3

date of assent 23 March 2000

ss 1-2 commenced on date of assent

remaining provisions commenced 1 July 2000 (see s 2(1), (3) and 2000 SL No. 174)

Tourism, Racing and Fair Trading (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 2002 No. 13 ss 1, 2(3), pt 12

date of assent 24 April 2002 ss 1–2 commenced on date of assent remaining provisions commenced 7 June 2002 (2002 SL No. 133)

Justice and Other Legislation Amendment Act 2010 No. 42 ss 1, 214 sch

date of assent 14 October 2010 commenced on date of assent

7 List of annotations

Note—s 17 of Act No. 57 of 1981 substitutes "Registrar" and "Registrar's" in each case as may be applicable for "Commissioner" (where it is used as a reference to the Commissioner for Corporate Affairs), "Commissioner for Corporate Affairs" and "Commissioner's" wherever these words occur save in s 4 of the Principal Act which is expressly amended by s 16 of Act No. 57 of 1981.

```
Long title amd 1993 No. 83 s 60
```

Arrangement of Act

s 3 amd 1976 No. 26 s 3 om 1992 No. 40 s 163 sch 1

Definitions

prov hdg sub 1995 No. 58 s 4 sch 1
s 4 def "approved" om 1993 No. 83 s 61
def "approved form" ins 1995 No. 58 s 4 sch 1
def "chief executive" ins 1993 No. 83 s 61
om R1 (see RA s 39)
def "Commissioner" om 1981 No. 57 s 16(a)
ins 1993 No. 83 s 61
def "consumer" om 2002 No. 13 s 44

```
def "credit report" om 2002 No. 13 s 44
           def "credit reporting agent" om 2002 No. 13 s 44
           def "credit reporting agent's licence" om 2002 No. 13 s 44
           def "individual" om 1992 No. 40 s 163 sch 1
           def "inspector" sub 1993 No. 83 s 61
           def "licence" sub 1993 No. 83 s 61
              om 2002 No. 13 s 44
           def "licensed credit reporting agent" om 2002 No. 13 s 44
           def "licensed private inquiry agent" om 1993 No. 83 s 61
           def "licensed subagent" om 1993 No. 83 s 61
           def "licensee" om 1993 No. 83 s 61
           def "Minister" sub 1990 No. 80 s 3 sch 6
              om 1992 No. 40 s 163 sch 1
           def "private inquiry agent" om 1993 No. 83 s 61
           def "private inquiry agent's licence" om 1993 No. 83 s 61
           def "register" om 2002 No. 13 s 44
           def "registered address" amd 1976 No. 26 s 4
              sub 1993 No. 83 s 61
              om 2002 No. 13 s 44
           def "Registrar" ins 1981 No. 57 s 16(b)
              om 1992 No. 40 s 163 sch 1
           def "registrar" ins 1992 No. 40 s 163 sch 1
              om 1993 No. 83 s 61
           def "related corporation" amd 1981 No. 111 s 23 sch
              om 1993 No. 83 s 61
           def "subagent" om 1993 No. 83 s 61
           def "subagent's licence" om 1993 No. 83 s 61
PART 2—INSPECTORS
           sub 1993 No. 83 s 62
Appointment of inspectors
           sub 1993 No. 83 s 63
Inspector's identity card
           sub 1993 No. 83 s 63
Production of inspector's identity card
           sub 1993 No. 83 s 63
Powers of inspector
           amd 2010 No. 42 s 214 sch
PART 3—CREDIT REPORTING AGENTS
           sub 1993 No. 83 s 64
           om 2002 No. 13 s 45
Division 1—Licences
           om 2002 No. 13 s 45
```

pt hdg

s 5

s 6A

s 7

pt hdg

div hdg

Credit reporting agent must be licensed

prov hdg sub 1993 No. 83 s 65(1)

s 8 amd 1993 No. 82 s 3 sch 1; 1993 No. 83 s 65(2)–(3)

om 2002 No. 13 s 45

Application for licence or renewal

s 9 amd 1976 No. 26 s 5; 1993 No. 83 s 66; 1999 No. 63 s 67

om 2002 No. 13 s 45

Grant of licence

s 10 amd 1976 No. 26 s 6; 1981 No. 111 s 23 sch; 1993 No. 83 s 67; 1995 No. 58 s

4 sch 1

om 2002 No. 13 s 45

Restoration of licence

s 11 amd 1993 No. 83 s 68; 1995 No. 58 s 4 sch 1

om 2002 No. 13 s 45

Variation of licence

s 12 amd 1993 No. 83 s 69

om 2002 No. 13 s 45

Cancellation of licence

s 13 amd 1993 No. 83 s 70

om 2002 No. 13 s 45

Appeal

s 14 amd 1993 No. 82 s 3 sch 1; 1993 No. 83 s 71

om 2002 No. 13 s 45

Registers

s 15 amd 1993 No. 83 s 72; 1995 No. 58 s 4 sch 1

om 2002 No. 13 s 45

Division 2—Credit reporting agents

div hdg om 2002 No. 13 s 45

Permissible purposes of reports

s 16 om 2002 No. 13 s 45

Information to be furnished to consumer and credit reporting agent

s 17 om 2002 No. 13 s 45

Information to be disclosed by credit reporting agent

s 18 amd 1993 No. 83 s 73

om 2002 No. 13 s 45

Obtaining information falsely

s 19 amd 1993 No. 83 s 74

om 2002 No. 13 s 45

Unauthorised disclosure

s 20 amd 1993 No. 83 s 75

om 2002 No. 13 s 45

Endnotes

Supply of false information

s 21 amd 1993 No. 83 s 76 om 2002 No. 13 s 45

Falsifying records or credit report

s 22 amd 1993 No. 83 s 77 om 2002 No. 13 s 45

Liability of credit reporting agent

s 23 om 2002 No. 13 s 45

Deletion of stale information

s **24** om 2002 No. 13 s 45

Demanding payment by threats

s 25 amd 1993 No. 83 s 78 om 2002 No. 13 s 45

Division 3—Private Inquiry Agents

div 3 (ss 26-34) om 1993 No. 83 s 79

Division 4—Licensees generally

div hdg om 2002 No. 13 s 45

Licensees not to assume additional powers

s 35 om 1993 No. 83 s 80

Registered addresses

s 36 amd 1976 No. 26 s 7; 1993 No. 83 s 81

om 2002 No. 13 s 45

Production of licence

sub 1993 No. 83 s 82 om 2002 No. 13 s 45

Surrender of licence

s 38 amd 1993 No. 83 s 83 om 2002 No. 13 s 45

Automatic cancellation of licence

sub 1993 No. 83 s 84 om 2002 No. 13 s 45

Furnishing incorrect information in applications, etc.

s 40 om 2002 No. 13 s 45

Prohibition on use of listening devices

s **43** amd 1993 No. 82 s 3 sch 1; 1993 No. 83 s 85; 1995 No. 58 s 4 sch 1; 2000 No. 5 s 461 sch 3; 2010 No. 42 s 214 sch

Prohibition on communication or publication of private conversations unlawfully listened to

s 44 amd 1993 No. 83 s 86

Prohibition on communication or publication of private conversations by parties thereto

s 45 amd 1988 No. 58 s 11; 1993 No. 83 s 87; 2000 No. 5 s 461 sch 3

Inadmissibility of evidence of private conversations when unlawfully obtained

s 46 amd 1993 No. 83 s 88; 2010 No. 42 s 214 sch

Destruction of irrelevant records made by the use of a listening device

s 47 amd 1993 No. 83 s 89 om 2000 No. 5 s 461 sch 3

Advertising listening devices prohibited

s 48 amd 1993 No. 83 s 90

PART 4A—INVASION OF PRIVACY WITH RESPECT TO DWELLING HOUSES

pt hdg ins 1976 No. 26 s 8

Unlawful entry of dwelling houses

s 48A ins 1976 No. 26 s 8

amd 1993 No. 83 s 91; 2000 No. 5 s 461 sch 3; 2010 No. 42 s 214 sch

Delegation by chief executive

s 48B ins 1993 No. 83 s 92

Offences and penalty

s 49 amd 1993 No. 83 s 93

Proceedings how and when taken

s 50 amd 1993 No. 83 s 94

Saving of remedies

s 51 amd 2002 No. 13 s 46

Protection from liability

s 51A ins 1976 No. 26 s 9 sub 1993 No. 83 s 95

Approval of forms

s 51B prev s 51B ins 1992 No. 40 s 163 sch 1

om 1993 No. 83 s 96

pres s 51B ins 1995 No. 58 s 4 sch 1

Regulation-making power

prov hdg sub 1995 No. 58 s 4 sch 1 sub 1993 No. 83 s 97

amd 1995 No. 58 s 4 sch 1; 1999 No. 63 s 68; 2002 No. 13 s 47

Publication of Regulations

s 53 om 1992 No. 40 s 163 sch 1

© State of Queensland 2013

Authorised by the Parliamentary Counsel